RUDLAND
Population 252 drea 1,102 .ecres

1 Teledhone xiosi
1 Sub Post Cffice with Jenar.l Jho0n

Zarly Cloeing “Jednesday 12 Illoon

“ugses and tralns serve the village for Unpincham, Ztamisrd and llarket Harboroush.

Qocinzham Station is twenty yards over the County “orier, in Leicestersiire.
"Rockingham nazes me, Caldecoii clai=g ne

Jut 3rezt Zaston o''ns ne"

Church of 5t. John the lvangelist.
No charities HSut t+o o0ld lalies ne:efittel Tron .LyiZington

3nde “ouse Charities as rscenily as 1930':

Jals little Suide 3ook has Yesn conmpiled as a rasult ol several meetings and
convaersations with the older natives, from »ooks in the Jeounty library, “rom
autiicntiic :iaps and Charts, frou searching of Chirch legiztars and Cverseer's

aAceaunt Soocks and from the Curator of the Linecolrn S—ciiives.

2c0n.e in the village ‘7o h —2een the chief source; of infornntion are:-
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..r3. .revster The late r. -. .rcolis

Jae lote liss A. Trooks AP Qeds Brovn T w malrynen Uppingham RsJ:0Cs
Lrn. Close Mre 4o 3tan-er 7icar's avden, Jextod, Verge:
.re. ‘oumes ire 4o 3toies

rie Yice re. J. ard

8 v: ard ¥r. is JHzrell T =zox, Jlairman of sSchool

..anazers

230 (r3. 4. diznell néde itolies ani Xp. J. Zrailer - -of u-iives.



“he village, formerly also Caldecot, Caldecote (ispede}, Laucot (1576) and

Cavucott, is one of the seven Caldecotts of England and ales.

It lies at the extreme South of the County, where lLeices:iersiire and

ilorthamptonshire meet the Rutland border.

Jh1e houses are attractive and well built - many are still thatched and belong
to the 16th, 17th, or 18th Centuries. It czn be seen that many earlier
buillings have heen attached to houses and to garden walls. The builders have
used the nearby ifonstones, oolitic Horthamptonsaire sandstone of a delightful
tawny, honey and amber shade, some also with a purple tinge. The house corners
are strengthened with a harder suverior Weldon stone. Cn some houses thatch
has been replaced by Collyweston slates and there, the new roofs are
considerably lower than the gables. 3y the dates it ca= be seen that many
houses were built during the Civil Yar 1542 - 49 ani in the reigns of

eorze II and III 1727 - 1320.

Jaldecott lies on the Nottingham to London Road AS0C3 and nn the MNorth 3ank
of the "Little Eye" just before it joins the River 'iellzand. The village is of

-,

indefinite plan, lanes running nere and there “row the bisected Village Green.

Zhe Little Zye not infrequently floods and has been known o rise over the
main road to a depth of 40 inches. On the road tis fiscods last only a few

hours but on the fields near the Welland they persist
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ns in their wake
alluviur, wiich has made the Jelland Valley one of the richest ia tae Country.
It is said that, even abroad, this zreat srazing district is known as the

Yale of Plenty.

Jocieties

1. Velland Valley '“hist League, Caldecott Branch - founded over 50 years

“up won 1954,
2. Jarish Council. Tounded December 4th 1394,
3. lomean's Institute  TFounded 1325,

:as won wmany honours for Cookery and Handwork.

Has ziven wiiely to Charities, especially to Leicestor 2oyal Infirmary.

Zives censioners' Jupvers ani Gutings.

.« Concert Party. founied 1937,

s raised large sums for Charities, here and in other villazes. 3ives

Uperas and Plays.
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To find the interesting parts of Caldecott we 'wouls’ lilie ic take our visitor

on a Z.L)YZCOTT TOUR and assume he is coming via Uprinsha:n. le travels south until

he reaches the cross roads and from the 400 ft high 1ills sees the magnificent
views along the valley in which the vi lage lies and the “road ribhon of the
elland winding its way Bastward to Stamford, 3paldins and *he lash.

Continuing a little further, he sees a milestone ''London 77 miles". To the right
is a lake and 30 yards farther on is a field on the risat, where the water is
just passing from view. That field, known as 3hort urlong, is the first in

Caldecott and as our tour begins here, we beg our visitor to pause and gaze.

To the left, in t=ze valley, is tae ancient village of Lyddington, of which
Caldecott was originally a Chapelry. Its squat spire and %:in hills, Bee and
Priestly, are clearly seen and Seyond, veering a little jouth, is the

nagnificent eighty-two arch Viaduct, built one hundred ye2ars ago over t2e 7Jelland
floodland to carry-the London to Scotland train. If the l-te afternoon sun is
shininz, the traveller will bYe as thrilled as our \merican visitors to see
distinctly every cyclamen shaded arch of drick, clear cut axi 1efinite, though
Tour miles away.

Agnin to Southward, is the pretty village of Grétton, seen dotted adout the West
side of the Northamﬁton Uplands and behind that, just on tie norizon, part of
Rockinzham Forest has been hewn down and Corby ironsoze digzzers are at work.
Jue South is seen the ancient Rockingham Castle wita its surrouding terraces and
parikland crowning the hill. This is the home of 3ir liclhael Culie 3eymour, a
direct descendant of the Edward Jatson of Lyddington /10 tock 2 lease of the
Jastle from Henry VIII. 3ir Lewis Jatson, his grandson, bousht it from James I
in 1619 and completed the restoration. 3ir Michael also comes from a line of
aonoured Sea~-mnen, one 30 renowrned that Gates at Gibraliar “esr tribute to his
memory. In tae ‘ars, the familiar name out thaere ;;12d ‘ened the heart of many a
local sailor. His wife, Lady Faith, is a Airect ‘oss: .- of iir Edward Montagu,
+hogse “aughter married Edward Jatson and also of the srext Zairal, the Zarl of
sandisich, knighted on board shiv when he was “ringin: I :orles II back to his

Lame

rizatful throne, as Pepys tells us in his DJiary.

“illiam the Conqueror built the Castle on the site of a nrovious Sritish and
2or:an one and used iron, it is said, for arrow heads. >t has been recently

e talished that there, in the “reat dall, in 1095, t"c¢ nslish Tarliameat was

really born, for 7illiam summoned thore = vro=day Uouiicil of lodles, 2isghovs

anl Glergy, to nmeet ani settle a dispute between himself ~nd inselm, Arca“isihop

4



of Janterbury. Tuiceé in the coursé of the d:liberations, the ircnbishop,.
having been left alone during the consultations, was ®ound guietly sleeping

with the wall for a pillow.

ilnost every succeéding monarch, to Tlizabeth I (whe s lest in the forest

there and, when guided by a Cordy man, granted a that village) has
visited the Castle. It is exciting to think that many ol them have passed
aloag this very road, some bound for Scotland. King John left the Castle on
nis last fatéful ‘journey to The Tens. Zdward I wa . hsre oy tinmes, one room
Haing called "Jueen FEleanor's bedroom' and he spent five dajys there when his

wuegen died.

Hereward the ake was stabbed in Rockingham Torest. From the Torest, in 'hard
winters, the deer escaped across the ‘lelland to Caldecott and thrilling
¢hases for poachers ensued.

Turning again to the South-West are the pretty hillside villages in Iast

Leicestershire and, if we step into the bounday field cn the right, seven

churciaes will be visible and the lovely picturesaue .iye “rosk ieﬁervoir
liss at the traveller's feet. The brook comes from Tiltosn Till; 639ft up
and has a daily flow of many million zallons. It was dammed in 1937 to »rovide
ater for the faagt =~rowing Corby Works. An Act of Barliament'allgwed the
bloecking but 700,000 gallons per lay were to be alloewed through for those
fields dependent on the water. Its area is 400 acres an? the capacity 1,781
million gallops. It is®pine fringed rendezvous for the laturday afternoon
péace-IQVing holiday maker, a fisherman's joy and a bird watcher's paradise.
It obounds in salmon trowt, mallard, widsyeon, swans, mute and bewick, teal,
coot, suew, pochard, goldeneye, tufted duck, wintail, haron and, looking
like a snowdrift, ornithologists tell us, are aftean 25 2any as 25,000
sez7ulls at a time., A delichtful run of adout seven miles t 'tes one ri-ht

r-und the regervoir ard through three villages, one 6f =iiich is Celdecott.

astly, looking MNorth-West behind us, is the little laleside village of
Jtele IJry, vwhere once the Dighy family lived and owmed. Une of them became
notorious in connection with the Sunvowder Plot, parily antchad, it is said,

in the little room above the Church porch.

Teturning to the road, we are now again on

Ty the old peodvle call
tic road Anl we aré rerdinded of stase coaches rattling a2len;: Beitween Leeds
ani Landon, three tines a week, the post boy 2laying ‘The days we went a

5inpaying". Cne dark night, we are told, thz villa~e post #aster, a little

&



nerry, flung his own 'bags’ through the window into the mnil bagy the mistake
wasd not discevered uwntil they reached "The Green Dragon’. Cie newspaper was
bought and shared avidly by those who could read.

‘e pags Galley or Gallows HYill where many a poor starved sheep stealer has

kicked his last. Field roads Bast to Lyddington and ‘iest to Jtockerston and

come to the fascinating site of the lost Saxon village of Saelston. This high
view point may have been the original settlement, from whare the river could
be uatched should .Viking raiders come. Also there were all life's necessiities
fuel, food from woods and streams, ¢lay for vessels, wool for clething,
abundant springs of drinking water, the Eye Brook benrind and the Yelland in
front, for transport. ferial photograpas show that these gueer shaped humps
and bumps in the field are definitely earth works and probably there is a
buried street formation leading right down to the road. The traveller may
mount the field hill without trepidation, the farmers are very kind. Limestone
walla can be seen; remains of buildings, a windwill nound and, from records,
we know a church was here, probably St. John's. The Tont for many years was in
a Caldecott garden but, unhappily has been transferred to Vorthamvtonshire.

it is not Krown whether the willage "died out™ in the Ilack Jeath 1348, or
whether it was abandoned when the arableé land was ziven over to pasture vhen
the Ilemish weavers'had shown Epgland that fortunes could de made from wool,
or whether the Great Plague wiped the village out in 1665. 'hat is thought
to have been a stone coffin with 1id grooves has been seen within living
memory and coversd up again. Local men, c¢leaning dykes have found pottery
and coins ~ ome a Stuart - and in the last century a coffin containing
Jjewelry was found on the opposite side of the road.

The episcopal lands are often wentioned with Caldeco®t but it was owned, in
1243, by Cmma 46 la Legh and went in dower to John Gray of hitwell Manor,
Ketton. (See Cavacters)

The last known entry "™654' mentions only Spelston field.

Froceeding to the crest of the hill, one can gee again the southern half of
the boomerang shaped reservoir amd the dam. One half o< tae latter and one
hundredth of the former are in Caldecott, from where the "iobbi john' field
was sudmerged. Here the view is sunérb Sut ve are sally reminded of Guy
Gibson and the gallant fighter pilots who practised here before their
Zaistorie attack on the Mohne Jam. For a succession o evenings they thundered
low round our Churgh spire, then Jdivped te the regervoir ard up would go
fuechsia eoloured flares as the ‘tza,rgﬁe,t' was hit, Theny after one 3aturday.
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night, they came .nomore and history tells the rest of the gl.orious epic

but our hearts ached in Caldecott.

The 01d Vicarage

Jadly, we retrace our steps to the main road and seec throusa the trees, a
quarter of a mile away, a square, strong building."In 1860 the Rev. T.9.Gilham
had a handsome new rectory built with 47 acres of Glebe Zond'. This was to be
the new home of the Vicar of Lyddington cum Caldecott. The stone was the last
oolitic limestone to be quarried from Uppingham Road. lir. 3tanger, the groom
who drove Vicars between to two parishes, tells vivid tales of the stately
life of fifty years ago. The Rev. Brooke-Brown, the last Vicar, left in 1931,

o

when Caldecott was joined with Rockingham and both 1 ivings fell vacant for
about eight months. The present owmers are iir. and .iss Cox of Kettering

who bought the estate from the Zcclesiastical Commissioners.

Just before the A6003 turns East into the village are two fields on the right,
called "iindmill Close" and the Jindmill Paddock, here Callecott Windmill
stood on an eminence on the edge of the ridge, as shown on tie 1800 A.D.
mavs. It was a sreat oak post, fitted with an iron pivot and sails which
swivelled to catch the wind. 3elow the post were buildings for utores and
maciinery. It was dismantled =zbout fifty years ago aand the nost and doors

7ere brought down to the water mill in the village.

Cn the bend is "Smoky Row", home of Mr.Chris Ke*gnth/S iior, vhose name is
one oI the oldest in Caldecott, veing spelt as Cateley and fately in Church
legisters and, in the Overseer's book :-
Caitley's girl for calling two meetings 4d.
(Smoly Row, within living memory, was a cycle and repair shope In 1979 the
aeightley family is still there. One of the older ones, sadly deaf and dunbv,

'3

iz in a Ketton Home.)

Then we reach the corner of Church Lane where are six Council Ilouses built

in 1921. At the far end, in an enclosed yard are five aouses called "Burgess'

2

<ow'e Uhis ha' vpreviously been a crew vard and stables, where very good

-

norses were kept. Niss Burgess, of Cottingham, was the omer until recently.

iy . =1 o B . X 7 . N - 5
“he lonz, low, wooden building now confronting +ue traveller, iz the newly

acuuzired Villace Hall, whose story could fill a boo!: %o itself. Tt stands on

the '"3lack dorse" site, the yard of the ovld country ian ‘rvich stood in the

next lane and was once the only »Huilding in the 'village® and 30, should have



been a 'museum pieéce’ with iis stout inner structure and little oak
doored cupboards soing thirty inches b»ack into the wall., It was sold and
pulled down in about 1935, having been last ocouvied {ac a dwelling house)
in 1027. The Village Hall Committee came into veins after a meeting in
tihe scihiwool when HMrs. Vice decided to let the Hill Ilall as Zarase premises
after the tragic death of ner daughter. Yillage efforis riized the msney
and Messrs. Stewart and Lloyds Ltd. very gensrously jave us the huts then
standing on the Pumving Station zground. They had heen hurriedly erected
for men working ‘at the dam but, that work finished, thoy hecame obsolete,
The cost of demolishing, removing, rebuilding etc. was 31,%00. The Crand

Opening Ceremony was performed on April 27th 1955, % r.lienzies Jilson
essrse. Stewart and Lloyds, when refreshments and entertainnent were
Zree to all villagers and friends of the village. 'ow the zround is heing
prepared for seed by the kindness and generosity of the Jircctor of the
tforthants ‘Jater Board and !ir. Hinch. 'Y¢ hope For a Ai-mified Comriunity .-
Centre for many years to come. The inside, decored by  r.,lhris Keigntley
Junior, for a2 very small sum, looks gay and attractive, The Tovernment
Offiecials, vleased with our efforts have just given us a su’stantial ~rant

for equipment.

The Garden House or Priest's House

)

Jefore leaving this lane, one must take a look at a house in the zarden,

reacled by going a few yards towards the church, turning risht and along
a zarden Adrive~way. This tucked away gem séems as if it had seen nuch
better and more dignified days. Could it have been a do.rer house? or a
Presbyteéry? The height, alternate layers of lorthannion stone with a
superior whiter one, inside a lovely white marble Sirenlace, were built
for no ordinary cottage dweller. The thien thatcn and w212 Huilt %arns
speak of former affluence. The kitchen has the enormous osnlt “ireplace

into which seats could be »ut in the chimney. There are »normous aocks and
bars for flitches and pots. Uvnstairs is a nriest or caimney hole, ovig
ensuzh to hide a man - or haunches of venison -~ the walls on the landing
on the second (2) floor are Zudor -~ whitened plaster sirived with oak. One
o the bedroonm dpérs has the xind of fastening one associates with the
Jonnie Prince Charlie heroine. The old people say the house was last lived
in by a refugee family from the French Revolution. .7%2r that it became a

S s

a soultry house. (In 1978 - 79 renovated as a home).

butcher's shop, then thé Jar-time Jam Cantre 1939 - 1845, low, alas it is

Sontinuing down the Black Horse Lane, the traveller arrives at the old

Village green, once known as Cross Bank, scene of nany a feast and
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revelry. Annually, on the first Sunday after 19th. Jeptenber, Yeast ‘leek

began. Roast beef on Sunday, Hash on Monday, Thrumaerty {hoiled wheat and

honey) and "Methlegin" in the week. Jere and in the 0ld Plough Yard were

rounc-abouts, shooting galleries, stalls of brandy snap, presents to be won,

srinning wheels, darts, donkeys - and black ey
the year but petered out in the 1920's, moving

last seen, very reduced, in 1937.

Cn the Green stodﬁ a "King Stone' with a Cross
were thought to have been put as quoins in the

eventually became unsafe and was ZJemolished in

es. It was the highlight of

- t0 Pitts leadows and was

but the stones of the former
3lack Horse wall - which

1956. There vere also Stocks

which disappeared in 1835. The Green was probably cut through when the main

road was diverted round the village instead of by the Church and it was

2

paved in 1949 to keep visiting motorists from making car park of it.

(c> 4

‘e are now coming to some of the oldest part of the isting village. Cn

the corner house .above our heads is a blocked in Cheese '/indow. The little

cattle lane is now known as '"Post Office Lane', as the house at the top

was the second Post Office (kept by Mr.Rimmington, late of the irmy in India).
Ivy, 1is daughter, was for many years Church organist, very talented. 3Behind
the houée is a gate-post containing the stone weight of the Caurch clock,

taken out fifty years apgo to exchange, as the clock was not keeping accurate

tine.

The delightful house with the Chile Pine and .M., 1774 was until 1932 a

510D with counters, canisters and the old world scent of a village store,
where tallow and cheese, paraffin and resinous wood, made a Zelightful

ningled aroma and outside, & notice:-

. 2 URCHNATLL
JEALER IN

TIA TOZACCO
AND SNU¥FEF

ilext door, roofless now and also owned by the Woodcocl: descendants, is the
derelict Tongregational Chapel. This was originally a woolecomier's shed,

"
a

wihere the workers combed down the hanging fleeces wii
In 1739 (Geo. III) is a record:-

sniked gloves.

"ie whose names are underwritten da recommend %l bYearer,

N m, G F ;
Richard Trueman of Caldecott, to tae Justices of Lie eace

9



at Quarter Sessions as & person qualified to be sworn as w
wocl winder according to the directions of an Act of Parlianent

passed last Sessions. C.Peach. W.Gibson. Iy Shield."

Jool trade had been protected after 1340 and no-one might bYe a wool winder
unless he were furnished with a certificate from the Justice of the Peace
at the Sessions. The last known woolcomber was James Ouzden.
Later, the building was used by Mr. Moore as a '"Stays" factory and eventually
it became a Chapel. In 1829 a return had to be made of all the places of
worship other than the Church of England and records state:-

"From Caldecott, one Independent Decenters' Chapill, attendance

40 to 50".
{From 1672 the Dissenters had met in licensed private houses. One was Thomas
Langdalet!s 1672 and another Francis Smith's 1789). The chapel closed in 1920
but in 1939 becam a centre of great agtivity in the Yar. Fitted with a
telephone it bedame the A,R.P. Headquarters under Mr. Baden Yright and was
continuously manned. The ladies met there for Red Cross mgetings‘ The old

benches were there and fire grate and a great green tarpaulin draught sheet.

Next is a house with P.W. 1640.at the gate and 1651. Feter and illiam .
‘loodcock were a family of graziers of very good standing, very respected

overseers and wardens. Peter, on 2nd May 1639, promoted an Action in the

Court of High Commission against Robert Rudd Mai.y priest here for forty

eight yvears, more keen on '"'sordid occupations' than on his Church, '"served

a thatcher with thatch on a Sunday", was accused of neglect of duties and
contenmpt of office; "wearing only a threadbare coat with four skirts and

no surplice". He preached against Nebuchadnezzar and all -raziers, after
doodcock had accused him. Yhen the parishioners were kneeling at the
Communion rail he would take away the Bread and 'line and dispose of it to

nis own use. Sometimes he would draw away the Cup from ithe Communicant. Rev.
Rudd was forced to pay a fine of £100, make public anology and be deprived of
his office and a curate was to be provided who was to have a competant
stipend from the profits of Rudd's Vicarage. Two years -reviously Feter
"oodcock had given or changed the Church plate, congisting of a cup and paten
of silver, marked with the maker's mark D.G.30. Zach bore, round the rim
"Changed this Cupp by mee Peter Woodcock of Caldecott in Lhe County of Rutland
this 30th day of June 1937, added to it 48d".

In the barn at the back of the house, a zsreat feast was held for ueen

Victoria's Diamond Jubilee 1897 when great argunents weont on as to whose was

the original tithe barn. Malting was carried on in the Crew Yard. This

10



Meadow Tarm is now occupied by the Billson family (see Personalities) and

owned by Sir Yichael Culme Seymour.

Passing down we come to Mill Lane with its ancient cottages vhose backs are
_ perilously near the water's edge. One new house seems out of place among

50 much antiquity but the original, where Miss Brooksonce held a little
school, was burnt down in 1944, Here was also Bates Dam which kept the water
from overflowing into the lane and a little further along, an earlier water
mill. ‘

At the end of the lane is the Manor HAouge, with a Fire Iasurance Plate of
the Yorkshire Insurance Co. 1824. There is also J.3. (John Stokes) 1695.
7illiam le Queux wrote about the Manor House and thought there might be a
secret passage to Bringhurst. It is thought that a former Manor House might
have stood here, for, in the next property, belonging to Mr.W.9Jignell, one
of ‘our main sources of village information, is a mediaeval dove-cot, shed
or rick-shaped, in perfect condition, with roosts for six hundred pigeons.
As only the Lord of the Manor was allowed to keep pigeons, this was probadbly
his estate and of considerable extent. Quite near to it, where Wignell's

house now stands, was a long, low building, known as the poor house.

Retracing our steps aloﬁg Mill Lane, we are reéeminded that along here, opposite
the new house, stood a row of cottages whose stone was used to build the
Organ chamber in the Church in 1908. We arrive back at the main road A6003.

The Garage premiseé here were once a Mill which carried on a big wholesale
trade. Here is the loft, in good condition, up to which the corn was hoisted
before chuting down to the grindstones. One can still hear the sound of
rusiing water dashing over the weir and the mill wheel is still visible, also
the tall mill chinmney. The working mill was once given to lliss Vice of Blaby
and Mr. Burchnall as a wedding present from her father. Later, ¥r.lLeonard Vice
possessed it. Eventually, in 1910, grinding ceased. After some time, when a
new.floor had been added, the Mill premises becane the Village Hall, with
ante-room cum billiard cun refreshment room and a chandler's shop at the side.
Jhen an ex-serviceman wanted the premises in 1945 and Hrs. Vice's daughter
had met with a tragic death; the premises were let to Hreknights and
negotiations for a Village Hall were begun. Half an old srindstone forms the
step of the house and over the door is an old sun <ial. It is said that hefore
it was a mill, the premises, or the adjoining house, were '"The Sun Inn",
Perhaps when the mill stood higher up the brook. it the back of the premises
are the doors from the old Uppingham Road #indmill and the post stood for

11



many years in front of the mill.

The field adjoining the Mill is Pitts Meadows where there is a ford and where

gravel was once dug. It is the field where a weather observation balloon
recently fell, where the new sewage pump is to be, where an unexploded bomb
fell in the War and the locality had to dbe evacuated for forty eight hours

or so and where Calcecott's last little vigiting fair was held.

On the other side bf the road, near the confluence of the Eye Brook and the

Mill Race was a Bleaching Ground and, until recently, in the home of Miass

Annie Broocks, was a linen sheet, handwoven and bleached in Caldecott.

Quarter Sessiomns Geo. IV  1821:-
"o person be allowed any relief on account of any child above nine years

of age who shall not be able to spin Linen or Woollen".

The two arch bridge was built by Scotts in the early nineteenth century.
Formerly there had been a ford, not muddy énough to impede the progress of
Hugh, Bishop of Lincoln in the thirteenth century, when he became mudbound
half a mile farther on and collected money for the hridge there. Recently

the Gouncil has added a footbridge for the safety of pedestrians, particularly
schooclchildren.

Crossing the Eye Brook, which is now about & mile from the Reservoir, we
come to the Southern Boundary of the County and Parish and to "Toll Bar".
Here, at the corner where Ellig and Everard's shed is, was a hut and toll
gate, let annually to a toll-keepar. Saddle horses were 2d. waggons 3d.
Local cattle went through free. A local tradesman used the rough, damp,
ford field crossing rather than the gate vhen taking his gravel into
Leicestershire.

Recently the local paper reminded us "A hundred years ago a Drayton man was
fined for jumping the toll gate to avoid payment". irs. Jim “ard's ancestor

was the last to keep the toll gate.

The County Boundary, running most of the way from the reservoir with the

Zye Drook, leaves it near Pitts Meadows, crosses "Toll Bar' field at diagonal,
then across the Great Easton road to behind Zllis and Zverard's shed, continues
the odblique line across A6003, across Castle Ian yard, into “alton's field

and on to the River Welland.
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Retracing our steps to the Mill Garage along the A6003, we see on the left,

two ancient cottages, supposedly three or four hundred ycars old, with huge

oak planks for bedrocom floors and with quaint little nooks.

On the rigut band side is a row of what at first sight might be thought to
be stables but, facing Rockingham, this was once an attractive cottage, home
of Caldecott's firast Post Office, a sub-Post Office of Rockingham, from
where, previcusly all Post Office business was transacted. Then it became
"Miss Raine's School” before the Board School was built. Before, children
had attended Rockingham School and earlier even walked to Corbdby, itself a

very small village then.

Adjoining Miss Raine's are the stables in which were bora '"Playfair'! and
YForbra', which both later won the Grand National. It will be noticed that
there is a Continental style archway with a room over, connecting Mr.Hunt's

stables to his house.

Next doer is the Bakehouse and old Parish Oven, still owned by the Brown

family. Here in addition to the uswal bread, large batches were ordered

for distribution to those in Caldecott and other villazes , who were Yon
the Parish", From here the housewives could be seen every Sunday rushing
home with the steaming jéint, having been summoned by the twelve o'clock
bell. From here on St. Catherinds Day, wives and meids had their "Katten"
calkes baked. One set of woolcombers frightened the maid so that she dropped
her cakes on the way to "P.W." and they took a few minutes off for feasting.
The oven was also used for baking clay pipes,.which were set on an iron
stand. The last baking was during the 1914 -.1918 War. The baker was killed,
and, we regret to say that on the morning of the Armistice, just as his
sisters were rejoicing and preparing to make and burn an eZfigy of the
Kaiser, news came that gay, laughing, young George Brown had béen killed.
Yalter, happily, returned to do much valuable public work.

Next door is the old Plough Inn, whost business was transferred to the premises
opposite in 1948, Malting and brewing had been done By fiorrises and others
since 1578. Part of the annual village Feast was held in the yard and, up in
the out-house loft, Club suppers were held until the Floor became unsafe.

4illiam le Queux stayed here and wrote part of the "Tickencote Treasure".

¢{The premises opposite are known as the new Plough Inn, which, previous to
1948 had been the Post Office and, before that, the home of the Ward family,
Before her death Mrs. Lenton Ward had told the undertaker, lr. Bradley, of
the /nite Hart, that she did not want to lie on the bare boards of her coffin
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he was to supply a feather bed and pillow, which he willingly did.)

The next house, occupied by the Murrant fawmily for many years, was built

in 1707 by a local celebrity Peter Browne, donor of the bell, probably a

descendant of Robert Browne, the fiery originator of Congregationalism

and the Brownist Sec¢t, whose grandson, an apothecary of Uppingham, married
Prudence Kirkby, a Caldecott girl. Peter and John were men of some standing
and set up the first wooden water engine in Market Harborough for £60 and
bound themselves to maintain and repair it for twenty years at a cost of

£10. Peter's story is also linked with Church history.

Anothexr descendant was "Boykin''Browne, a little cripple, w+ho used to crawl

to "Town Pump" opposite and carry the buckets of water in his mouth.

One of the rooms is called "Slabd Hall' and has a diamond scratched pane
"Jane Cave 1866".

Proceeding along the main road, we see the Village 3chool and house built

on Hr.Laxton's land where the shepherd huts were. The stone was Irom the
Lyddington road cottages known as '"Castle Rag' which were bought for £10
each. There is only one other County Primary 3chool in the whole of‘Rgtland.
The "little Chapel"™ was soc popular and the non-confornist element so étrong
that a Church of England School could not be agreed to. It was a Board
School or nothing. In 1908 it became a Council School and all documents
except the Log Book and Parish Award were takpn_away. It began with thirty-
one children and eight hundred and twenty-two have passed through the School.
The records disclose much medical history over the eighty years. Yhere once
there was malnutrition, skin Disease and "the plague' fever, ring worm and
whole families excluded, now every child is a picture of health and good
feeding.

For many years children have competed in and often taken first place in
singing and drama competitions. They dance at the village fete and are
invited to other villages., They help with the social life of the village
and have outings, give concerts and win scholarships. They are encouraged
in every way to become loyal, useful citizens. Eleven are at the Grammar
Schools and John ‘Watson, with an underage scholarship, is at Feterborough
Cathedral King's School.

On 25th November 1953, after winning several County Junior 3inging
Coupetitions, the School was invited by the 3.B.C. to take part in a
14



Christmas Broadcast for Schools. Vans and equipment arrived, two technicians
and Felicity Kinross, the producer. It was all great fun and the children
wvere marvellous and never did a wrong thing all day. Their clear singing and
speaking voices were a pleasure to listen to. When the relay came, on '
Decenber 7th, parents sat tenseé at home, waiting for the miracle of hearing
their own children's voices on the air. At school the children were almost
numbed with the mystery of it 21l as their recording came through on the

Vicar's loudspeaker.

(Since the compiling of this book in '58 and 'S9, forgotten histories of the
original school have come to lighﬁl

Mrs.Robinson, of old Pogt Office Lane, now Mrs. Rawlins, of Brooke, wrote a
tnesis and found from Parish Council records, that the founders and fund

raisers for the school were:-

Rev. W Gilham Chairman

Mr. Slendlove Clerk to the Board. Salary £7 per annum.
Mr. Vice Probably Mill owner -

Mr., Ward Farmer? Coal deliverer?

Mr. Brown Baker?

Mr. Morris Publican? (01d) Plough Inn.

Now, the school having closed in Deec. 1977 and being taken over temvorarily
by Kiss Glew of Great Easton as a nursery school, the question arises re
rent. Yho really owns it? Leicester Education Committee (former Rutland E=d.
Committee) or the village?. )

I always paid my rent to Rutland Ed. Com.(%.Néenan). It will be seen from
this book's records that from 1875 to 1908, the school was a Board School
but, in 1508 the Rutland Ed. Com. arrived and seized all the documents except
the log book, which, I believe, Mrs. Haddon hung on to.

C?erhaps ownership was debated then, we do not know).

The Parish Award was also left behind.

Mow Leicestershire Ed. Com. has the log books and everything movable.
Recently 1978 - 79, Mr. Clarke of Lyddington has produced the architects'
recuirements and estimate for the building of the school and school house,
the erection of which was granted to his forbear. The cost to be, without
architect's fees £887.8.11 :-
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Excavation and bricklayer £165.9.0 Plumber and glazier &43.4,9

Mason £226.6.9 Smith and Ironionger £112:1.7
Slaterer and plasterer £126.16.10 Painter
Carpenter and joiner 2253.10.0

Mr. Clarke hopes that this estimate will eventually be kept in Oakham museum.
Today, July 1979, the aschool and schoolhouse stand empty. )

At the North East Eorner, there was, until 1947, a pretty Village Green but it
was ruthlessly dug up to give place to the bollards on a corner where many

accidents had occurred.

Opposite the School House, beyond the little gate, in the house facing the

meadows lives Mr. Roscoe Wignell, a water diviner, who helped to locate water

for the new houses. If you ask him, no doubt he will display this magic skill.
Again, Church registers show many spellingas of the name, Jignall, Wigfall,
Wigsall.

Opposite the School, until recently, was a village '"pub" with a sign ''The
“hite Hart" (formerly "King's Head") until a passing van ripped the sign off
and a piece of wall with it. Here one could imbibe the true old world ,
atmosphere, a step down, a scrubbed table, big hearth and blazing fire, old
settles, "Church Wardens", old dialects, dim lamps or candles and yarning,
yarning, "old yows" and tups and market prices and, for the quieter ones
always dominoes. In the workshop across the yard, at one time a blacksmith's
shop, Kr. Bradley, with his sons, an excellent tradesman, raconteur and
player upon '"the bones" would make doors and coffins. Cne night, a visitor
enquiring for him was terrified to see him rising out of a coffin on the

bench but was toXd he was "just trying it'" to feel if it was comfortable.

Many a night after closing hours, Mr. Bradley would take his customers houe
in his little gig, perhaps ten or fifteen miles away, along some Very narrow,
badly surfaced roads and lanes. They had enjoyed the old werld atmosphere
too longe. |

The new houses are the '"Welland Close" estate of flats and houses, built in
1953+ The Parish Council was invited to suggest names, which the ladies
supplied and the Rural District Council made the final choice. '

“he intervening empty building was once the headquarters of the Salvation

Army. The house facing Uppingham Road has twice been struck by lightning.
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Just beyond Welland Close, on the left, is a little jarden, once the Village
Pinfold but after the enclosures of 1800 this became obsovlete and later was
given to the Parish by the Lord of the Manor. By then it was being used as
an ash tip and rubbish dump and grew more unsightly every year. Eventually,
in 1951, for the Festival of Britain, the Yomen's Institute asked permission
to make it into & little garden and was allowed to do so for the peppercorn
rent of 6d per annum. The seat was subscribed for and given by the W.I. being
made of teak from H.M.S. Warspite. Competition verses, written at the time,
describe the work:=
Te "Come for a walk", you said to me,

Right gladly now I can agree,

For when my feet get tired and slow

I can enjoy the seat and so

Look round this simple garden fair

With flowers sweet to scent the air,

‘And bless the folks who were so kind,

To have our happiness in mind.

I. Williams (Jinning-Poem)
Rockin han leadmistress.

e In olden days a village pound,

Yhere straying cattle oft were found,

Later still, mid sun aﬁd oreezes,

Housewives threw their bits and pieces.

Along came the Head of the W.I.,
With mortal combat in her eye,
Said "Ah, I'1ll call a meeting,

That's just the place to put the seat in?.

Out came the broken pots and pans,
Nettles, briars and rusty cans,

Bottles stones and nasty clinkers,

That made the blood flow from our fingers.

F.M. Mrs. ¥unro Shoplieeper.

3. Around the wall they planted shrubs,
Far more aesthetic than old tubs.

G.Ce MNrs Chambers Fron Halifax.
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4, So little boys please keep your fzet,
Trom off the ladies' village seat,
Appreciate what they have done,

In nineteen hundred and fifty one.

K.Ve Hrs Vice 111 and shop.

Returning to the bollards, we pass 'Ye Olde House" built in 1647. It is said

that the end wall once fell out and was entirely rebuilt by Te3e(William

Tiptaft Stanger) fdr £5. There was once an orchard tragedy there.

Next door was a Cruck House, supposed to be older than Agincourt (1415) but

this was demolished as unsafe in 1957. On it was a ring for shoeing bullocks.

Opposite, at Rose Villa, was Caldecott's fourth Post OIffice 1948, Formerly
on this site was the Carpentry Shop of a Mill Wright, vhose descendant is
Mr. Dennis Wright, now Postmaster at Post Office No. 5. This Deacon family

were great inventors. (See personalities)

In the last house on the right live the Stokes' descendants, two sisters who

wrote “"Just Rutland" in 1953, Mrs. A. Wignell and !irs. J. 3inglehurst.

And now the Church of St. John is full in view, standing dignified and four

square. It is a Church of the people, no extravagances, crusaders' effigies,
squires' tombs: everything good, solid, built to last but graceful and well
proportioned. We are grateful to our forbears for this heritaze and we have
tried to follow their tradition by renovations recently with the best of
materials. The bells have been rehung and the tower repaired at a cost of
£990.7.6. We have reroofed the South Aisle with lead at a cost of £960,

whereas an inferior roof would have cost about half the money.

Viewing from the outside, we see the Sanctus Cot remains but the bell has gone,
perhaps at the Reformation. The porch, built of Ashlar, is thought even in

1648 to have been made of old stones.

The H{ass or Scratch Dial, seen on the South side, West of the porch, is worthy
of note. It was rather like a sundial but recorded tle canonical hours prior
to the use of clocks and so, is pre fifteenth century. The Gnomon has gone

but the lMass hours are clearly scratched, the chief one 9.0.am (tierce) being
the deepest. Other hours scratched are 2.0pm (none) 4.,0.»m (vespers) and

?.0. pm (compline) and 6.0 am (prime).
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The buttresses at the junction of the South Aisle and the belfry tower prove
part of the Church to have been erected before 1300. They are square with the

corners of the Church and not diagonally, as after 1300.

The tower and spire were probably added in the fourteenth century (Richard II)

and the steeple repaired in 1638, During a terrific thunderstorm in July 1797,
between 3.0 and 4.0 am, 13 yards of the 100ft. steeple crashed and caused
sreat devastation. '"The frames and the wheels of the bells were shattered so
that only the fourth could be tolled". The North wall was partly cracked but
scarcely any glass broken, though holes were made in masonry and moulding

and stones and mortar fell on almost every pew. People came from miles around
to see the damage but repair work was started immediately, lir. (Brown(e)
carting stone from Weldon. (At this time notice of the coning of enclosures
was hanging in the Church Porch). The steeple top,recently found at the North
of the Church, has been assembled by Mr. Stanger and placed at the Porch
door. In this corner of the Church Yard are two sunken stones of 1658. Many
gravestones and fioor tablets are supposed to have found their way to a
neighvouring village, the Vicar of that time having given permission for
their removal.

The North and Yest doors are almost permanently closed, 25 in most churches,

because of prevailing and cold winds.
The clock is 1724 and the second finger 1922.

On the liorth exterior much history is revealed; The eastern end of it, of
rubble and dressed stones, is twelfth and thifteenth century but the thrilling
pileces, for the historically minded, are the bright red Roman tiles and bricks
slipped in among the stone. It is supposed that prior to 400 A.D. there stood
on this spot a little Roman temple and that several of the stones still
remained when Caldecott demanded a little Church, w2ich was built as a

Chapelry of Lyddington.

In 1280 the Chancel was extended eastward, the Nave westward, then the tower
and steeple and south aisle added. There is a distinct break in the wall

showing where the extension took place, the old west wall probably remaining

standing until the new part was finished.

In the fifteenth century the Clerestory was added and part of the original
Still remains with corbel motifs on the south side but, in 1863, the other
windows were added or reset and the corbel carvings newly made. It is a

19



matter of some conjecture whose heads are represented.

In 1908 the organ chamber was added, with arches to add a lorth aisle if
necessary. The stone was from some old cottages in Kill Lane (Duck's Nest)
opposite Mr. Joe Wignell's new house (the first was burnt). This addition

to the Church added a graceful synnetry and balance.

There is, on the Last side of the Church, a gravestone erected to Lottie

Day, a little girl killed by a snowball (with a stone in it) and another to
Laurence Packer, 1937 an American lawyer, son of a former Vicar. Expressing

a wish to be buried here, his body was brought over on the'QJueen Mary', then
came by road from Liverpool. The glass lidded coffin, a 400 copper casket,
was in the Church all night, many going to view the corpse, lying in lawyer's
robes (similar to gentleman's evening dress) on silken cushions. The next

day the Rev. O.R. Plant conducted the service.

(In 1956 the grave was reopened and an urn, containing his wife's ashes

interred).

Before entering the Church, the oldest part can now be seen, part of the
Chancel, the eastern end of the Nave, to which, inside, the rcod loft was

once attached.

The rood arch is happily left but some of the steps were moved to make room
for heating apparatus. Here on the rood loft, passion plays may have been
acted at the foot of the Cross, or Carols sung. Part of this loft is thought
to have found its way to the underpart of the old belfry floor, for, during
1363 restorations "a gilt and carved oak beam was seen, ornamented with a
king and a queen and roses on each end and in the middle". At the time of
the thunderstorm, on the Nave sile of the Chancel arch, a stone was seen
"about two feet square with a border, having two rudely carved human figures

sculptured in aipgh relief'. This may have been vart of the original Roman
Altar.

The Chancel was extended in 1280 and again in 1353, re-inserting the lovely

fourteenth century East window of geometrical tracery dut setting it in

cenment instead of the original mullions.

The lancet window, splayed to give more light, was also re-inserted. During
the last extension the Altar rail was probably placed Zast, instead of "est
of the 3edilia to allow more room for the Choir.
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The tiny aperture on the South of the Chancel is supposed to be of Roman
orizging this has been said by some antiquaries, who also helieve that the
sacellum walls were used as the first tiny chancel of the Christian Church
and that, when roofed, there was no light except from a slit and that the
Roman stones surrounding the slit have been reassembled to enclose the

tiny window. Others say it is Early English.

The candlesticks behind the Altar were unearthed out of r. Billson's
(Peter VWoodcock's) barn in 1941 after having been lost sight of for many
yearse. Caldecott hopes to be as lucky, in the near future, with handbells

and the orchestral instruments.

Before leaving the Chancel, the visitor will notice a piscina, for washing
the holy vessels, the aumbrey where the wine and bread are kept and the

recess for a reliquary to hold sacred relics, behind the altar.

Inside the Vestry'is a chest, probably R. Deacon Junior and the drawing of
the steeple when struck in 1797.

Cn the North wall of the Nave, a visitor of that time states that "at the
gsallery end is an ancient painting of the Garden of Iden, with Adam and Eve
under the Tree of Knowledge with birds and beasts around them". On the WJest
wall, another fresco; he writes "On the upper part which is the back of the
neat deal gallery (for the orchestra) is a painting of Time with his scythe
and hour glass and Death ". The modern scrolls are said to have been done

by the Vicar's daughter.

The wooden candlesticks on the ‘Jar Memorial were "turned" from belfry wood

by Hrs. Vice's grandson and the offertory plates by lir. Colley of Corby.

The framed lists of Clergy and YWardens were researched and given by Mrs.

lleenane.

The tower was completely rebuilt and the bells re-tuned and rehung in

1951 = 52. Originally five had been installed in 1596 (!/illiam and Mary),
cast by the famous Toby Norris of Stamford. The first, the little treble,
vas given by Peter Browne and bears the inscription '"Peter 3rowne gave me

to this town 1696 The second and third have the date only, 15696, the fourth

"Toby Norris made us all five'" and the fifth "Robert Zolwell" (Church Warden)

"*eter 3Browne died in 1710 and was buried in an altar tomb near the South
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door. The brass plate recording his death disapveared within the last few
years. His descendant now resides in a house built by Peter Brown 1707."
(Church Bells of Rutland 1380)

The Rutland Magazine adds that the plate was stolen in 1348 and the tomb
likewise disappeared soon afterwards, the Vicar having ziven permission to a
stonemason to take it away. Perhaps it was the one that old people say recorded:-
"Here lies the body of Peter Browne
‘ho gave thé little bell,
Not to the town nor to the people
But to the steeple.”

The coat of arms hanging in the belfry chamber is of mueen Victoria.

BeZfore restorations the pews were boxed, with "poppy heads', :each with a
candlestick, into which the candle was put by the parishioner at the winter

services.

The Yar Memorial speaks for itself. We honour our glorious dead,

2

G.F. Brown ©F. Chambers J.T. Day G.R. Chambers =
B.He Jeffs H.R. Stokes A.J. Wignell

Hunt

s
Q.

God bless them.

The Reredos in the South Chapel was carved by Miss Zveret and for many years
was in the Chancel and the full length of the lovely Zast window could be seen

but, on receiving the second one from Duddington, Miss Zveret's was moved.

On the wall is an image bracket and the figure standing in the piscina
represents Robert Raikes, the founder of the Sunday School system. It was given

by iiss Bryant of Great Easton.

The Font is of early decorated character but restored by local workmen. On
leaving the Church, the traveller cannot but admire the heavy oak Gothic door

with the original iron studs.

The bench mark on the Zast end of the Chancel was inserted like a great collar

stud on 16 September 1958 by the Ordnance Surveyors, who told the schoolchildfen
that spot was 192 ft. above sea level.
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The wrought iron gate on Uppingham Road was erected with some of the money
collected for celebrations and a commemoration at the Coronation of

Her HMajesty Queen Elizabeth II. A few flourishing trees were also planted.

Our circuit is now complete and should our visitor wish to know anything

further, he has only to ask anyone, anywhere in the village.
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HISTORY

Caldecott has been occupied by Britons, Romans and finally inglo 3axons,
who called it Ceald-cot (cold shelter). /e are mentioned in Domnesday Book.
Prom 1126 there are Church records in each century and two of the Chaplains
paid Richard II's Poll Tax. After the Dissolution, Edward VI's uncle-by-

marriage became our first Lord of the Manor, brother-in-law of IHenry VIII.

e are in the Wrangdike Hundred and in the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries
paid "Head Silver" of 19/- per year as Chief Rent. At this time the village
was very poor. The Overseers paid the doctor £8 per year to doctor the poor,

assisted with funeral money, "paid F. Smith when his master would not, 84".

"Catherine Cox sitting up two nights with Mary Deacon 1 sh.

10 leeches at 3d each Passage to America £14

Constant relief of Poor, Lady Day 1826 to Lady Day 1327 £176.14.0%d."
No Help was given for children of six years who could not knit, nor for those
of nine who could not spin and weave. The Constables Jay '/ardens and Dyke
Reeves kept the Parish orderly and clean, until the Parish Council was
formed in 1894. When times were worst, men tramped into the Fens to work on

the drainage system; ‘but no one ever went to Botany Bay!

Queen Victoria's Golden Jubilee was celebrated in the barn opposite the
Church - probably the tithe barn - and the Diamcnd Jubilee in Peter 'Woodcock's
Yarn. ‘/hen the first aeroplane race took place, thz men sat up all nizht

with cheese and beer.

In 1926 the Women's Institute was formed and, later, catered for village
feasts, at King George's Jubilee 1935 and King Ceorze VI's Coronation in
1937, when Caldecott was said to be the prettiest decorated village between

here and Bedford.

The first Fete and Gymkhana was held in 1947, for Village lall and Church
Tower and Bell Funds. About this time a Court of Snquiry was held at the Mill
Hall, where farmers and the Northants. ‘Water Company thrashed out their

arcumnents. Counsel arrived in wig and gown.

In 1951 we wrote a village pageant, consisting _of twenty-four Historical
scenes. Over seventy villagers took part.
In 1953 at the Coronation of Queen Elizabeth II, television was set up in the

Church, houses were floodlit and there was an illuminated fountain on the

Village Green.
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In 1957 the pive line water eventually came.

Jar

There are records of Waterloo and Boer War soldiers.

In tae 1914 - 18 War, in addition to our fallen heroes, forty seven are on
our Roll of Honour. An interesting book in the village records their names
and full desériptions'of the life and death of the fallea.

In the 1939 - 45 War, our Roll of Honour was thirty.. “fe proudly presented
our 3Service peoplé with £185 among them on their return and sent them many
parcels while they were away. At home we housed evacuees, knitted, sewed,
made 960 lbs. jam for the Ministry, had A.R.P., and Civil Defence units (H.G.)
were machine gunned slightly, bombed but without damage, saw the reflection
of burning London (Coventry? ) did Rest Centre drill and gave money to all
lar causes. Italian and German prisoners worked on the farms and seemed sorry
to leave. £8,000 was saved in savings campaigns, &34 given to the Spitfire

Fund and £49 raised by Schoolgirls at bazaars.

At the Victory, after the feast when three sheep had been eaten, we admired

the floodlit Church and danced round the bonfire on the Village Green.

Cccuvations

The chief occupation in the village is working for iessrs 3tewart and Lloyds
-ironstone or for the Water Board. There are six farns and tieir employees
but only three actual tradesmen - a plumber, a carpenter and decorator and
an electrician. Some girls are at works in Market larborough and there is
one surveyor. There is a headmistress and an assistant and four ex~teachers,

three of whom are splendid pianists.

Other versonalities of Former Days

John and Villiam de Caldecott who took their name from the village became

v

o
iigh Sheriffs in the reign of Henry VIII and Elizabeth. They lived at Ketton

=

and may have been descendants of Zmma de la Legh (1262) of 3nelston, vho
married Mr. Grey of Whitwell, Ketton. As there was probably no 3nelston even
in 1530, they became de Caldecott.

John 3tokes of the Manor House, High Sheriff in 1865.

2. Deacon Millwright, inventor of portable grinding mill, also of a hay
tedder and a water mill for Islip - a brass tablet is there stating the fact.
an ancestor of Dennis “right, the Sub-Postmaster.

©r. Barnett who wrote down the news of the 1360's and what was found

when
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the railway line was laid.

Adam and Eve the travelling musicians.

tirs. Billson Organised and instructed a Belleringing team after the rehanging

of the bells. Died after a short illness - three daughters aged 18, 16 and 9.

Mr. 2.J. Ward Helped in all village work; often S3ecretary. Killed by a falling

coal truck deor at work in Station Yard. Rev. Hughes and the village installed

electric light in the Church in his memory.

Mr. Crowson wound the Church clock for fifty years.

Richard Vicars a deer stealer of two hundred years ago, could jump three yards

backwards at the age of seventy and hid venison in the chimney.

Personalities of Today

Mr. C. Billson Aged ninety three. Is very active, visits, gardens, very

youthful. Helps in B village causes. Zx-3choolmaster of Cranford. Kind and

fathefly. Ex-Parish® councillor.

Mr. W. Wignell TFarmer. Intellectual. Excellent menmory - remembers his

srandfather's reminiscences. Family came in 1680.

Mr. Wa Stanger Vicar's Warden and Clock winder. Has served Church from

Choirboy days for sevénty—two years. Has an excellent memory, wonderful
perception and descriptive powers. He is also the villcge barber. He tolls the
bell, three times for a man, twice for a woman, once for a child. He rings the
Pancake bell.

There are families in the village continuous since the sixteenth, seventeenth

and eighteenth centuries and one newcomer whese ancestors fought with William I.

The village has numerous women and men of forceful character and strong
personality, who all deserve a place in a Village History. There are those who
undertake duties on the various Committees and Councils. The ladies who are
always willing to give their time =2nd help in so many ways and on so many
occasions, those who organise and take part in the Village Clubs and Societies,
the teachers and also the children coming 2long who show ~sreat promise.

Although this is usually said outside Caldecott, not in it "A wonderful Village".

Today the village is recovering from a bad attack of the 1959 'flu.
3ince January 1958, we have had no Vicar but Church work prosresses well,

Jervices are taken by local Clergy and Laymen.

April 1959,
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